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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Smartchem Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Smartchem Technologies Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2020, its profit, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters

Response to Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable as reduced by
dealer discounts and other similar allowances.

Subsidy income is booked as revenue when the
sale to dealer/retailer is recognised and is subject
to the Company ensuring with compliance with
relevant regulatory requirements.

Volume discounts are assessed based on
anticipated sales. Further, timing of revenue
recognition is dependent on the shipping terms
agreed with customers in relation to passing of risk
and rewards of ownership.

The application of Indian accounting standard (Ind
AS 115) involves significant judgements/material
estimates relating to identification of distinct
performance obligations, determination of
transaction price of the identified performance
obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used
to measure revenue recognized over a period.

Reference:
Refer Note 2 (e) to the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our audit approach was a combination of test of
internal controls and substantive procedures
which included the following:

e Understood the policies and procedures
applied to revenue recognition, as well as
compliance therewith, including an analysis of
the effectiveness of controls related to
revenue recognition processes.

e Analyzed and discussed with management
significant contracts including contractual
terms and conditions related to discounts,
incentives, and rebates.

e Reviewed the relevant estimates made in
connection with volume discounts and its
accounting treatment in the books of account.

e Performed procedures to ensure that subsidy
is correctly and timely booked as revenue at
the rates prescribed by the Department of
Fertilizers and in correct period.

o Performed cut-off procedures to ensure that
revenue is accounted in the correct period.

e Selected a sample of contracts and performed
the following procedures:

a. Analyzed and identified the distinct

performance obligations in these
contracts.
b. Compared such performance

obligations with that identified and
recorded by the Company.

c¢. Reviewed contracts terms to
determine the transaction price
including any variable consideration
to determine the appropriate
transaction price for computing
revenue and to test the basis of

estimation of the variable
consideration.
e Reviewed disclosures included in the

notes to the accompanying standalone
financial statements.
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Impairment testing of assets

The Company has significant intangible assets
relating to the acquisition of fertilizer and
explosives business

As the fertilisers segment has suffered losses in the
previous year, an assessment of the carrying value
of intangible and tangible assets of the fertilisers
business is warranted.

Reference:
Refer Notes to
Statements

the Standalone Financial

Our audit approach and procedures included
following:

e FEvaluated the reasonableness of
management’s  conclusions on  key
assumptions, including forecast cash flows
focusing on revenues and earnings,
assessed the appropriateness of discount
rates, historical and budgetary financial
information, current market conditions
and growth rates

e Assessed the reliability of management’s
forecast, whilst considering the risk of

management bias
e Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
workings and models

Information Other than Ind AS Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Company’s Board report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), and profit
or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income)of the Company in accordance
with the group’s accounting policies, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.




B. K. KHARE & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standard on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note no. 41 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements relating to subsidy
which describe the uncertainties related to the outcome of withholding of subsidy and related
matters. Qur opinion is not qualified in this matter.

We draw attention to the Note no 43 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements regarding
compliance of notice received in pursuance of the search & seizure operation conducted by the
Income Tax Department during the previous year. The Company has not made any additional provision
for tax in respect of these proceedings which are ongoing and not concluded. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 2013, we give in the
“Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year.

For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105102W)

Ravi Kapogr
Partner =
UDIN: 20040404AAAAFZ7694
Membership No. 040404
Mumbai, 30 June 2020
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ANNEXURE” A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of
even date to the Members of Company for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(i) Inrespect of its Property, Plant and Equipment :

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified during the year by the
Management in accordance with a regular program of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. During the
year, Company has conducted the physical verification of physical assets and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management and the records
examined by us and except as disclosed in note no. 3 of the financial statement, the title
deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the
name of the company.

(ii) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records have been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

(iii) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has granted loans to one
body corporate, covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of which:

a) The terms and condition of grant of such loans are, in our opinion, is prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per
stipulation.

¢) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year end.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and
guarantees and securities given to parties covered under the respective sections have been
complied with by the Company.

(v) According to information given to us, Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder to the
extent notified. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.
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(vi) On the basis of information given to us, we are of the opinion that, prima facie, the cost records and
accounts prescribed by the Central Government of India, under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act 2013, have been maintained. However, we are not required to and have not carried
out any detailed examination of such accounts and records.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Goods & Service Tax Customs duty
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities during
the year.

(b)  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, Goods & Service Tax, Customs duty, Cess and other material
applicable statutory dues as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the
date they become payable.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company
examined by us, particulars of dues of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, and Cess which have not been deposited
as on 31 March 2020 on account of disputes are as under:

(Rs. In lakhs)

Nature of the | Amount Paid under Unpaid Forum where Period to
Statute Demanded Protest Amount dispute is which
pending Amount
relates
Central Sales 8.24 412 4.12 | AP VAT Tribunal FY 2012 -13
Tax Act, 1956
Central Sales 45.29 5.79 39.50 | Appellate Jt. FY 2014 - 15
Tax Act, 1956 Commissioner
(CT)
Central Sales 17.02 5.23 11.79 | Hon'ble High FY 2008 - 09
Tax Act, 1956 Court, Andhra to FY 2011 -
Pradesh 12
Central Sales 18.77 2.35 16.43 | Jt. Commissioner | FY 2013 -14
Tax Act, 1956 (Appeals)
Central Sales 220.99 30.52 190.47 | Jt. Commissioner | FY 2015-16
Tax Act, 1956 (CT) to FY 2017 -
18
Central Sales 3.34 3.34 - | High Court FY 2003-2006
Tax Act, 1956
Central Sales 12.03 12.03 - | STAT, Vigaz FY 2005-06
Tax Act, 1956
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Nature of the | Amount Paid under Unpaid | Forum where Period to

Statute Demanded Protest Amount | dispute is which
pending Amount

relates

Andhra 159.38 18.68 140.70 | Dy Commissioner | FY 2015-16

Pradesh Value (CT) to FY 2017 -

added Tax Act, 18

2005

Andhra 1340.60 302.41 1038.18 | Hon'ble High FY 2009 - 10

Pradesh Value Court, Andhra to FY 2014 -

added Tax Act, Pradesh 15

2005

Andhra 39.84 4,98 34.86 | Jt Commissioner FY 2015 -16

Pradesh Value (CT) to FY 2017 -

added Tax Act, 18

2005

Central Sales 31.00 1.55 29.45 | Addl.Commisioner | FY 2016-2017

Tax Act,1956 (CT)

Andhra 31.84 31.84 High Court FY 2000-2004

Pradesh

General Sales

Tax Act, 1957

Income Tax 21.09 - 21.09 | CIT (Appeals) AY 2013 -14

Act, 1961 & 2015-16

(viii) Based on the records examined by us and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank as at
the 31 March 2020. There are no dues payable to Government and debenture holders.

(ix) Based on the records examined by us and according to the information and explanations given to
us, during the year, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the




(xi)

(xii)

B. K. KHARE & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, nor have any instances
of material fraud been reported to us by the management during the year,

The Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of records of

the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of Sections
177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or

()

partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, reporting under provision
of Clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934, Therefore, reporting under provision of Clause 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 105102W)

Ravi Kapgor \ 2\
Partner N ~—~"% /
Membership-No. 040404 \:~:
UDIN: 20040404AAAAFZ7694

Mumbai, 30 June 2020
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Smartchem Technologies
Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India".

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
_established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing whether the risk of a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ravi Kapopr

Partner

Memberghip No. 040404
UDIN: 20040404AAAAFZ7694
Mumbai, 30 June 2020




Smartchem Technelogies Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1.28,267 1,34,009
Capital work-in-progress 4 28,641 20,659
Investment property 5 461 461
Right of use assets 6 5427 -
Other intangible assets T 1,48 160 1,52,5149
Investment in subsidiaries and asscciates 8 46,115 44,732
Financizl assets
i. Investments g 3 3
ii. Other financial assets 14 432 463
Income tax assets (net) 1619 1,207
Other non - current assets 15 2814 1,044
Total non-current assets 3,61.959 3,64,187
Current assets
Inventories 16 56,292 68,647
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 10 1,00,668 112,891
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 12 3,858 2,876
jii. Other bank balances 13 ar4 154
iv. Loans 11 463 74
v, Other financial assets 14 1,702 429
Other current 17 8312 17.474
Total current assets 1,71,669 2,02,545
Total assets 533,628 566,732
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 1,705 1,705
Other equity 18 2,61,554 260,207
Total equity 2,63,259 261,912
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i.  Borrowings 20 61,063 60,164
il.  Lease liabilities & 3,693 -
jii. ~ Other financial liabilities 22 170 =
Provisions 23 3,233 3,002
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 25 13.067 12,926
Total non-current liabilities 81,228 76,092
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Borrowings 21 54 525 94,336
ii. Lease liabilities 6 926 -
iil. Trade payables
(a) total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 24 368 175
(b) total outstanding dues of craditors other than micro and small 24 1,11,542 1,13,503
Iv. Other financial liabilities 22 19,165 17,607
Other current liabilities 26 1.479 2175
Provisions 23 1.038 834
Current tax liabilities (net) 98 928
Total current liabilities 1,89,143 2,28,728
Total liabilities 2,70,369 3,04,820
Total equity and liabilities 5,33 628 5,66,732 |
Significant accounting policies 1-2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 3-50
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Smartchem Technologies Limited
SAILESH - e i AMITABH ©mlsaneaby
CHIMBNLAL RO s vesein BHARGAVA its 2mce 0
MEHTA Ul ol
For B.K.Khare & Co. 8. C. Mehta Amitabh Bhargava

Charterad Accountants ' Chairman
Firms Registration Mo.: 105102W - == DIN.D0128204
b YESHIL i Dignlly signed by

V'SAILESH o
MEHTA a5 TR T
Y. S. Mehta
Director
Membershipr.l\lo,: 040404 ,DIN:0T88E312
Place: Mumbai S =" Place: Pune

Date: 30 June 2020 Date: 30 June 2020

Digially ed b
PANKAJ piiictrm "

Dase: 2020.06.31
GUPTA 180126 10530
Pankaj Gupta

Company Secretary
Membership No: F-8219



Smartchem Technologies Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in % Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Income
Revenue from operations 27 3,15,070 3,75,938
Other income 28 1,395 2,434
Total income 3,16,465 3,78,372
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29 1,82,373 2,19,941
Purchases of stock-in- trade 30 23,894 66,538
Changes in inventories of finished goods & stock - in - trade 31 10,551 (14,609)
Employee benefits expense 32 18,875 16,666
Finance costs 33 15,861 15,698
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34 18,098 17,399
Other expenses 35 45,233 54,394
Total expenses 3,14,985 3,76,027
Profit before tax 1,480 2,345
Tax expense

Current tax 214 456

Deferred tax (credit)/charge 328 355
Total tax expense 542 811
Profit for the year 938 1,534
Other comprehensive income ("OCI')
ltems that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (535) 55
Income tax relating to these items 187 (19)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax liability (348) 36
Total comprehensive income for the year 590 1,570
Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each
i) Basic (in Rs.) 5.50 9.00
ii) Diluted (in Rs.) 5.50 9.00
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each
i) Basic 1,70,50,000 1,70,50,000
i) Diluted 1,70,50,000 1,70,50,000
Significant accounting policies 1-2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 3-50
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Smartchem Technologies Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,705 1,705
Changes In equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 1,705 1,705
B. Other Equity
Reserves and surplus Other reserves
Securities Retained | Genoral [ C2PMal | piponcjy | Otheritemsof | Total
= < redemtion Compr
premium earnings reserve Guarantee*
reserve Income
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2,439,807 7,105 157 1,800 - (232)] 258637
Profit for the year - 1,534 - - - - 1,534
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit - = = z “ 36 36
obligation, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,534 - - - 36 1,570
Share Issue Expenses - - - & L z
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2,49,807 8,639 157 1,800 - (196)] 260,207
Profit for the year - 938 - - - - 938
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit - - - - - (348) (348)
obligation (net of tax)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - 938 - - - (348) 580
Financial gurantee liability - - - - 757 - 757
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2,49 BO7 9,577 157 1,800 757 (544) 2.61,554

Note: Refer note 18 far nature and purpose of other equity.
* The Holding Company has provided the guarantee for the funds raised by the Company for which guarantee commission is neither planned nor likely to be settled

in near future and accordingly fair value of the guarantee commission is recorded as a companent of equity,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Smartchem Technologies Limited
Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in £ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31 March
2020 2019
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit bafore tax 1,480 2.345
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amaortisation expense 18.098 17,399
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 50 41
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 483 28
Gain on sale of investments {140) (813)
Finance cost on financial guarantee 265 -
Unrealised loss on embedded derivative conlracts 718 -
Dividend income {164} -
Interest income (315) (455)
Finance costs 15,861 15,698
Unrealised foreign exchange fluctuations loss (net) 830 526
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 37,166 34,969
Change in lrade receivables 11,740 (20,764)
Change In inventories 12,355 (16,627)
Change in trade payables (4,272) 72,460
Change in other financial liabilities 833 (17,734}
Change in other financial assets 128 209
Change in other non-current assets (280) (665)
Change in other current assets 9,653 108
Change in provisions (99) 110
Change in other current liabilities (696) 930
Cash generated from operations 66,528 53,997
Income taxes paid (nat) (626) 1.211)
Net cash generated from operating activities 65,902 52,786
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets (including (8,290) (10,178)

Capital work-in-progress)

Proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and aquipment 89 7

Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (1,383) -

Purchase of investments (1.33,800) (29,386)

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,34.040 -

Loane to subsidiaries (290) -

Repayment of loans by employees and other loans given 1 123

Fixed deposit placed (10,720) (68)

Fixed deposil matured 10,500 -

Dividends received from a subsidiary 164 -
| Interest received 620 455
Net cash (used in) investing activities (9,269) (39,047)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings - current 239,244 68 466

Repayinent of borrowings - current (2,73,870) (85,119)

Proceeds from borrowings - non current J 28,767

Repayment of borrowings - non current (8,239) (7,887)

Proceeds from issue of compulsory convertible debentures 10,500 -

Proceeds from borrawings - From related parties a15 -

Repayment of borrowings - From related partles (6,000) -

Payment of lease liability (997)

Interest paid {17,104) (16,223}
Not cash {used in) financing activities (55,651) (11,996)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 982 1,743

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,876 1,133
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3,858 2,876

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the financial statements.,

The above stalement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash

Flows"

As per our report of even date attached

For B.K.Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No.: 105102W

Membership/No.: 040404

Place: Mumbai "
Date: 30 June 2020 S

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAILESH  oiguaeysignea Smartchem Technologles Limited

CHIMAN 2o

| Digitally signed by

UAL £l AMITABH  AMITAEH BHARGAVA
MEHTA oo BHARGAVA S50

8. C. Mehta Amitabh Bhargava

Chalrman CFO

DIN:00128204 PAN G

YESHIL oy sanedy K/ U;¢nuw GUPTA

A | MEHTA 7 Ipate: 2020.06 30

::El:;iH ; i GUPTA um;zn +05'30

Y. 5. Mehta Pankaj Gupta

Director Company Secretary

DIN:07866312 Membarship Na: F-9219

Place: Pune

Date: 30 June 2020




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 1: The Company and Nature of its Operations:

Smartchem Technologies Limited (“the Company”) is a Company domiciled in India, having its corporate
office in Pune, Maharashtra, India. The Company is a public limited company. The Company is primarily
engaged in the business of fertilisers, agri services and mining chemicals

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
standalone financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of Preparation:
i. Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared con accrual and going concern basis.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the
purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when:
e Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
e |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e |tis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e |tis a cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as noncurrent.

A liability is current when:
e |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e |tisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
ii. Historical cost convention

a) The standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except the
following:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent
consideration that is measured at fair value;

e Assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell;

e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and

b) The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”), which is also the
Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated. Wherever, an amount is presented as INR ‘0’ (zero) it construe value less than
Rs 50,000.

(b) Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements.

The preparation of the standalone financial statements requires management to make estimates,

~-assumptions and judgements that affect the reportad balances of assets and liabilities-and disclosures,
and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the standalone financial statemetns and the
reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates considering different
assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Impact on account of revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future
periods are affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying values of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Taxes

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which the tax determination is made. The assessment of probability involves estimation




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) & intangible assets

The Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE at the end of each
reporting period.

The factors such as changes in the expected level of usage, number of shifts of production, technological
developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the
residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge could be revised and
thereby could have an impact on the profit of the future years.

Intangible assets, including Goodwill are initially measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequently, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite-life intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

For indefinite life intangible assets, including goodwill, the assessment_of indefinite life is reviewed
« annually based on the expectancy and estimation of future economic benefits arising from it to.
determine whether it continues. If not, it is impaired or changed prospectively based on revised
estimates.

Defined benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, employee benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Litigation

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, the ultimate outcome of each being
always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it is
considered probable that a payment will be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. Significant judgement is made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of
unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss.
Litigation provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts
and circumstances.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash flow (“DCF”) model. The inputs to these models are taken




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing their fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
values of financial instruments.

(c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

(d) Foreign currency translation

The standalone financial statements are presented in functional and presentation currency of the
Company. On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. As at the reporting date,
foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date and the exchange gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Revenue recognition

w-Effective 01 April 2018, ind AS 115 -'Revenue from centracts with customers' has replaced Ind AS 18 -
'Revenue’ and Ind AS 11 - 'Construction contracts'. The Company has applied Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with customers’ ("hereinafter referred to as Ind AS 115") effective from 01 April 2018, using
modified retrospective approach for the purpose of transition. Accordingly, comparatives for the
previous period have not been restated. The application of Ind AS 115 did not have any material impact
on the financial results of the Company.

Ind AS 115 specifies a uniform, five-step model for revenue recognition, which is generally to be applied
to all contracts with customers

Sale of Goods:

The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, upon satisfaction of performance obligation which is at a point in time when
control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Depending on
the terms of the contract, which differs from contract to contract, the goods are sold on a reasonable
credit term. As per the terms of the contract, consideration that is variable, according to Ind AS 115, is
estimated at contract inception and updated thereafter at each reporting date or until crystallisation of
the amount.

Sale of Services:

Sale of services is recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation towards rendering of such
services.




Smartchem Technologies Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Interest and dividend income:

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable and
dividend income from investments in shares is recognised when the owner’s right to receive the
payment is established.

(f) Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company operates and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

+Deforred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial
statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to appiy when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements
where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in OCl or directly in equity, respectively.




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Minimum Alternate Tax paid as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature of unused tax credits
which can be carried forward and utilized when the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Deferred tax asset on such tax credit is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the unused tax credit can be utilized in the specified future period. The net amount of tax recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

(g) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease. Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
_payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets
in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Operating lease payments
are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from an operating lease is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Transition to Ind AS 116

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has
notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases, and other
interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease
accounting model for lessees.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1st April 2019, using the modified retrospective
method. The Company has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognized on
the date of initial application (1st April 2019). Accordingly, previous period information has not been
restated.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Buildings, Furniture and Equipments.
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
- the contract involves the use of an identified asset
- the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period

of the lease and
- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short-term
and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term
or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also
adjusts the leased assets.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to
depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for interest on lease liability.

Please refer note 6 for details of the right-of-use asset held by the company.

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings, furniture & equipments taken
on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course.

(h) Business Combinations:

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Company elects whether to measure the noncontrolling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively.

Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share
— based payments arrangements of the Company entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the
fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of
bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the
same through OCL.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using
the pooling of interests method. The assets and liabilities of combining entities are reflected at their
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Consideration for business combination may consist of securities, cash or other assets. Securities are
recorded at nominal value. In determination of the value of consideration, assets other than cash are
considered at their fair values. The difference between any consideration given and the aggregate
carrying amount of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity is recorded in shareholder’s equity.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward booking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates that the assets’ recoverable amount. An assets’ recoverable amount is the higher of
.. an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, The recoverahle amount is determined for
an individual asset unless the asset does not generate cashflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and it is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cashflows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken in
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share price for publicly traded entities or
other available fair value indicators.

(k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrnwingﬂicurrent liabilities in the balance sheet.
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(I) Inventories

e Raw materials are valued at lower of moving weighted average cost and net realisable value.
However these items are written down to realisable value if the costs of the related finished
goods is not expected to recover the cost of raw materials.

e Stores, regular spares, oil, chemicals, catalysts and packing material are valued at moving
weighted average cost.

e Cost of inventory of materials is ascertained net of applicable CENVAT/VAT/ GST credits.
Finished goods including those held for captive consumption are valued at lower of factory cost
or net realisable value.

e Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

e Value of Work-in-Process of all products is ignored for the purpose of inventory having regard to
the concept of materiality and difficulty of quantifying such stocks with exactitude.

(m) Investments and other financial instruments
(i) Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e Those to be measured subsequentiy at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and
e Those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is
held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(ii)Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss and recognised in othcr gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

e Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss
within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments:

The Company initially records at cost all equity investments measues them at fair value. Where the
Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the
difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(iii)Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
e It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
centinued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Derivatives & Hedging:

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair vaiue at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship
designated.

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting:

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within
equity, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item on a present value basis from
the inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, within other gains/(losses).

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (for example, when the interest expenditure is recorded).

Derivatives that are not designated as hedges:

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge foreign exchange risks which are not
designated as hedges as in case of such transactions, the underlying is re-stated at closing exchange
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rates. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other
gains/(losses).

Offsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(n) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost-of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation on tangibie assets is provided on the straight-line method over the useful iives of assets as
prescribed in Schedule — Il of the Companies Act, 2013. As per requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
the Company has also identified significant components of the assets and its useful life based on the
internal technical evaluation. Depreciation charge on such components is based on its useful life.
Estimated useful life adopted in respect of the following assets is different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule — Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Name of Assets Estimated Useful Life
Computers - Servers and Networks 3 Years to 6 Years
End User Devices such as, desktops, laptops etc. | 3 Years to 6 Years

4 Years for employees vehicles and 6-7 Years for
other vehicles

Vehicles

Buildings other than Factory Buildings RCC Frame
Structure

61 Years

Various estimated life upto 21 years.

Flantan Machinery WNA IlI plant at the rate of 25.88% on WDV basis

e Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged.
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e Depreciation on exchange rate variances capitalised as part of the cost of Fixed Assets, has been
provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the assets.

e C(Capitalised machinery Spares are depreciated over remaining useful life of the related
machinery/equipment. Costs ofsuch spares are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
when issued for actual use at written down value.

e Cost of Leasehold Land is amortised over the lease period

(o) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially
at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of
an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

- The useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s
T erper.

(p) Intangible assets
Goodwill:

Goodwiii on acquisitions of business is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or Companys of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or Companys of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which
in our case are the operating segments.

(q) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 60 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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(r) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

(s) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(t) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, volume discounts and returns are recognised when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

(y) Changes in significant accounting palicies

There have been no changes in accounting policies during the Financial year 2019-20, except for implementation of Ind
AS 116 as described in point 2.3 (h) of accounting policy.

(z) Recent key accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There are no
such notifications which would be applicable from 1 April 2020.
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(u) Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as
the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented a:z current liakilities in the balance sheet if the entity dees not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

e The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: defined benefit plans such as
gratuity, pension, post-employment medical plans; and
e defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity and retirement benefit obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity and retirement
benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.
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Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in OCI. They are included in
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Provident Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a
defined contribution plan in which both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions at
a specified percentage of the covered employees’salary (currently 12% of employees’salary). The
contributions asspecified under the law are paid to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the
Central Provident Fund under the Pension scheme. The Company recognises such contributions as
expense of the year in which the liability is incurred.

(v) Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equitvy shares outstanding during the

~peariod. The weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period-and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(w) Cash Dividend

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distribution to equity shareholders when the distribution
is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders of the Company.

———
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(x) Recent Accounting Developments

Ind AS 12 Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty
over income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according
to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company does not expect
any impact from this pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend
situations where the entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to
taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities
continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance with Ind AS 12,

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the
entity has to use judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately
or whether some can be considered together. The decision should be based on the approach which
provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the
taxation authority- will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount {3)
entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and
the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates would depend upon the probability. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this
amendment on the financial statements.

Ind AS 23 -Boirowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset are
ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows
generally when calculating the capitalization rate on general borrowings. The Company does not expect
any impact due to this amendment

Covid-19 impact analysis

In view of the lockdown across the country due to the outbreak of COVID pandemic, operations in many
of the Company’s locations (manufacturing, warehouses, offices, etc.) are scaled down or shut down in
compliance  with the directives/ orders issued by the local Panchayat/Municipal
Corporation/State/Central Government authorities.

As per management’s current assessment, no significant impact on carrying amounts of capital work in
progress, inventories, goodwill, intangible assets, trade receivables, investments and other financial
assets is expected, and management will continue to monitor changes in future economic
conditions. The eventual outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may be different from
those estimated as on the date of approval of these Standalone Financial Statements.
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Note 4: CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Projects (Mainly comprising of building and plant & machinery) # 27,317 26,187
Others 1,324 3,472
Total 28,641 29,659

# Includes borrowing cost of Rs. 1,042 Lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs. 1,730 Lakhs)

Note 5: INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

461

461

461

Closing gross carrying amount 461
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - -
Depreciation charge - -
Closing accumulated depreciation - -
Net carrying amount 461 461

(i) Fair value

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

590 590

Investment properties

a) Disclosures relating to fair valuation of investment property
Fair value of the above investment property as at 31 March 2020 is Rs. 590 lakhs based on external valuation.

Fair value Hierarchy
The fair values of investment properties have been determined by an external, independent property valuer, having appropriate

recognised professional qualifications and relevant experience in the category of the land parcel being valued. The fair value
measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation
technigues used. The investment property consitute agriculture land at Nashik.

Description of valuation technique used
The Company obtains independent valuations of its investment property after every three years as per requirement of Ind AS 40. The

fair value of the investment property has been derived using the Direct Comparison Method. The direct comparison approach
involves a comparison of the investment property to similar properties that have actually been sold in arms-length transaction or are
offered for sale in the same region. This approach demonstrates what buyers have historically been willing to pay (and sellers willing
to accept) for similar properties in an open and competitive market, and is particularly useful in estimating the value of the land and
properties that are typically traded on a unit basis. This approach leads to a reasonable estimation of the prevailing price. Given that
the comparable instances are located in close proximity to the investment property; these instances have been assessed for their
locational comparative advantages and disadvantages while arriving at the indicative price assessment for investment property.

b) The Company has not earned any rental income on the above properties.
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Note 6: Leases
A. Right of use assets

Particulars Land and Other Leasehold Total
Building Equiment Land

Balance as at 1 April 2019 1,202 3,924 - 5,126
Add: Reclassification on account of Ind AS 116 - - 237 237
Add: Addition during the year - - 854 854
Less: Transferred during the year 2 = - -
Less: depreciation charged for the period (237) (549) (4) (790)
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 965 3,375 1,087 5,427

B. Lease liablilities

Particulars As at
31 March 2020
Balance as at 1 April 2019 5,126
Add: Addition during the year ' =
Add: Finance charge for the period 480
Less: Lease rental paid (997)
Total 4,619
Particulars As at
31 March 2020
Current 928
MNaon Current 3,693
Total - 4619
C. Interest expenses on lease liabilities
Particulars As at
31 March 2020
Interest on lease liabilities 490

D. Expenses on short term leases [ low value assets

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

Short term lease 1,328
Low value i -

E. Amounts recognised in the statement of cash

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

Tolal cash outflow for | 987

F. Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows

Particulars As at
31 March 2020
Less than one year 950
One to five years 5,071
More than five years 666
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 March, 2020 6,687

The difference between the future minimum lease rental commitments towards non-cancellable operating leases and
finance |eases reported as at 31 March, 2019 compared to the lease liability as accounted as at 1 April, 2019 is primarily
due to inclusion of present value of the lease payments for the cancellable term of the leases, reduction due to discounting
of the lease liabilities as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 and exclusion of the commilments for ihe leases to which the

Company has chosen to apply the practical expedient as per the standard.
The company does not face significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assels are sufficient to
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
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Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless oiherwise stated)

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Note 8: INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATES - NON - CURRENT

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Investments in equity sh {unquoted) of subsidiaries (fully paid up)
72,800 (31 March 2018 - 72,800) equity shares of of Platinum Blasting Services Pty 3,769 3,769
Ltd of AUD 100 each fulty paid up
10,000 (37 March 2019 : Nil ) equity shares of Mahadhan Farm Technologies private 1,383 .
fimited of Rs 10 each
63,956 (31 March 2019 : 63,956) equity shares of Performance Chemiserve Limited 983 A0S
{formerly known as Performance Chemiserve Privale Limited) of Rs 10 each
Total (equity instruments’ 46,115 44,732
Total 46,115 44,732
Aggregate amount of unguated investments 46,115 44,732

Note 9 : INVESTMENTS

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

(unquoted) (fully paid up) (fair value through

ts in equity sh
profit and loss)

Government of India.

Note 11: LOANS

4,715 (31 March 2018 : 4.715) equity shares of Punjab National Bank 3 3
Total 3 3
Note 10: TRADE RECEIVABLES
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade Receivables
Unsacured, considered good 1,00.668 112,891
Unsecured, credit impaired 1,678 1,195
! @ss; Impairment ioss allowance (1.678) (1,195)|
[Total 1.00,668 1,12.891
Movement in allowance for expected credit loss:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at beginning of the year 1,195 1,167
Add: Allewance for expected cradit loss 874 57
Less: utilized during the year 3¢1 29
as at the end of the year 1,678 1,195
(i} Trade Receivabie includes Rs. 39,668 Lakhs {31 March 2019 Rs. 39,652 Lakhs) towards ferliliser subsidy receivable from the

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

nsecured, considered good

Loan to subsidiaries (Refer note 44) 390 E

Loan to employees 66 29

Other loans i 45
Total 463 74

Note 12; CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Balances with banks

-in current accounts 3,289 2,736
Deposits with original maturity upto three months 563 -
Cash on hand 6 6
Chegues in hand - 134
Total 3,858 2,876
MNote 13: OTHER BANK BALANCES
== 31 March 2020 31 March 201
|pepasﬂs with maturity upto 12 menths from the reporting date 374 54
Tatal 374 54
Note 14: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current

(i} Derivatives
Derivatives not designated as hedges 1675 - % -
(i) Others
Interesi receiveable 27 - 332 -
Deposit with banks with maturity after twalve months from the reporling dale - T6 - 76
Security deposits - 349 - 381
Others b d a7 L]
Total 432 428 463




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial slatements for the year ended 21 March 2020
(All amounts in # Lakhs unless olherwise stated)

Note 15, OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

Total

Capital advances 1,869 379

Balance with governmeni authorities GET 665

Financial Guaranles Assat 278 -
2,814 1,044

Note 16: INVENTORIES

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Raw materials 18,160 22,497
Inrludes Rs. 5,738 Lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs 1,945 Lakhs) in transit
Work-in-progress - =
Finished goods 20,804 28,281
Stock-in-trade Includes Nil (31 March 2019 Rs 3 Lakhs) in transit 4,823 7,697
Traded goods - -
Stores and spares Includes Rs.16 Lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs 178 Lakhs) in transit 10.826 8,536
Packing material 1,870 1.536
Total 56,202 68,647
Note 17: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advances for supply of goods and services 1,175 3,628
Balances with govemment authorities 8,215 11,704
|Prepaid expenses 609 307
Financial Guarantee Asset 213 -
|Other receivables 100 1,835
|Total 8,312 17,474
Note 18: SHARE CAPITAL
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Authorised
17,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs, 10/ each. 17,500 17,500
{31 March 2019: 17,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each)
1R,N0.000 1% Cumulalive redesmable nraferance shares of R= 100/ aach a,B00 1,800
{31 March 2019: 18,00,000 Cumulative redeemabie p e shares of Rs.100/-
each.)
19,300 19,300
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
1.70.50,000 equily shares of Rs. 10/- each. 1,705 1,708
(31 March 2012. 1,70,50,000 equily shares of Rs 10/~ each)
Fully paid-up share capital as at year end 1,705 1,705
{I} R lliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the begi and at the year end
31 Marsh 2020 31 March 2019
Equity Shares No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount
Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,70,50,000 1.705 1,70,50,000 1.705
Add: lssued during the year - = " =
1,70,50,000 1,705 1,70,50,000 1,705
Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equily shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Holder of ezch equity share is enfitled o one vote per share.
In the event of liquidatien of the Company the holders of equity share will be entitied fo receive remaining assets of the Company, efter distribulion of all preferential amounts in
proportion to their shareholding. The distribution will be in proportion to the numbérs of equity sharas held by the shareholdars,
{If) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of .
Number of shares % Holdlng shares % Holding
Deepak Fertilisers & Petrochemicals Corporation Limited 1,70,49,894 100% 1,70.49,984 100%

Note 19: OTHER EQUITY
Nature and purpose of other equity

(a) Securities premium: Amaount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognized in Securities Premium. The reserve is eligible for utilisation in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2073,

(b) Capital redemption reserve: The Company had issued redeemable preference shares and as per the pravisions of the Act where preference shares are redeemed out of
divisible profits, an amount equal to the nominal value of shares so redeemed must be transferred to capital redemption reserve, out of divisible profits. Accordingly this reseve

is ereated and utilisation will be as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013

(c) General reserve: This represents appropriation of profits by the Company to General Reserve and is available for distribution of dividend.

(d) Retained earnings: Retainad eamings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid o

sharehclders,




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in 7 Lakhs unless othenwise stated)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Note 20: NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Terms of repay t Coupen/Interest | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
& Maturity date rate
Secured
Term loans
State Bank of India Repayable in 28 guarteriy|10.25% per annum 25405 32,111
instafiments siarting from
Export Import Bark Of India (Laan 1) Jun 2017 onwards. 9.80% to 9.50% par 5716 7,144
annum
Export Import Bank Of India (Loan 2) Repayable in 28 quarterly|9.55% to 9.75% per 28,662 28,767
instaliments starting fram |annum
Jun 2020 onwards.
Unsecured
Compulsory convertible debentures - IFC 8% inlerest per 10,628 =
annum (IRR - 15.25%)
Total non-current borrowings 70,421 68,022
Less: Current malurities of long-term debt (included in note 20) 8,358 7.858
Total 61,083 60,164

The term [oans from State Bank of India and Export Impart Bank of India have been availed for financing NPK project. The term loans are secured by pari passu first charge to
be created on the entire fixed assets partaining to Nitro phosphate plant (NPK project). All present and futurs immovable and movable fixed assets pertaining to NPK project

from Plot K1 to Plot K5., MIDC Industrial Area, Taloja, Dist. Raigad.

The term loan from Expart Import Bank of india (Loan 2) are secured by hypothecation of movabie fixed assets i.e Plant and machinery located at Plot no 7 Haryana Industrial
development corporation Panipat and original tile deeds of Panipat land having sumendered to Export Impoart Bank of India (Loan 2). Further term loan are secured by parl

passu charge 1o be created on the fixed assets located at Plot K7. KB MIDC Taloia.

Note 21: CURRENT EORROWINGS
Lonih b s bl L

21 March 2020 31 March 2019

Loans repayable on demand
Secured

-Buyer's credit - 483

-5Short term loan 52,300 85,500

-Cash credit facilities 1,410 2,353

53,710 88,336

Unsecured

From relaled parties B15 6,000
Total current borrowings B15 6,000
Total 54,525 94,336

Buyer's credils are ganerally due within 180 days and carry variable rate of mterest for the year 3.26% (31 March 2018 - 2,07%) and are secured by a first charge by way of
hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, stock-in-process, consumable stores and book debts.

Short term loan from various banks amounting te Rs 52,300 Lakhs is due within 180 days from the draw down date, carrying interast rate of 8.14% at 31 March 2020 (31
March 2019 — 8.84%) and is secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, stock-in-process, consumable stores and book dabts.

Cash credit amounting to Rs 1,410 Lakhs is repayable on demand carrying interest rate of 8.75% at 31 March 2020 and is secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation of

stocks of raw materials, stock-in-process, consumable slores and book debts,

Note 22: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
r

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

lNon-cun‘snt

Embedded Derivative 170 -
Total 170 -
Current

Current maturities of non-current borrowings 9,358 7,858
Interest accrued 597 1,427
Security deposits 5118 4,730
Capltal creditors 1,567 2,060
Derivatives not designated as hedges 548 526
Others (*) 1977 1,006
Total 19,165 17,607

(*) Others include provisivns related to employee benefits of Rs. 1,779 lakhs ( 31 March 2019 Rs.805 Lakhs)




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 23: PROVISIONS

31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Current Non - Current Current Non - Current
Provision for employee benefits
Graluity 717 2,275 558 2,113
Compensated abhsences 234 940 204 BE0
Defined pansion benafits B8 18 72 29
Total (A} 1,039 3,233 834 3,002

{A) Defined Contribution Plans
The Company has cerlain defined contribution plan such as provident fund, employee state insurance, employes persion scheme, employee superannuation fund whereln
specifisd percentage Is contributed to them. During the year, the Company has cantributed following amounts to:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Employer's contribution to provident fund 587 494
Employer's contribution to employee’s pension scheme 179 180
Employer's contribution to superannuation fund 864 394
Employer's contribution to ernEIoIee state insurance ] 12

(B} Defined Benefit Plans
I. Gratuity

In accordance with Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits”, an actuarial valuation has been carried out In respect of gratuity. The discount rate assumed is 6.40% p.a. (31 March 2019:
7.50% p.a.) which is determined by reference to market yield at the Balance Sheet dzate on Govemmenl bands. The retirement age has been considered at 80 years (31 March
2019: 60 years) and mortality table is as per IALM {(2012-14) (31 March 2019: IALM (2012-14)),

The estimates of future salary increases, ¢ ed in actuarial val
relevant faclors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

is 8% p.a. (31 March 2019; 6% p.a.), taking into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other

The plans assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India and India First Life Insurance In respect of gratuity scheme of the Company. The detalls of
investments maintained by Life Insurance Cerporation are not available with the Company, hence nol disclosed. The expecled rale of return on plan assels 15 7.50% p.a. (31
March 2019: 7.50% p.a.).

R iliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit oblig

Partlieulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2010
Prasent value of obligation at the beginning of the year 2,965 2,579
Current service cost 220 221
Interest enst 210 191
Acluarial ioss 550 38
Benesfits paid (338) (64)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 3,607 2,985

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit

and the fair value of the plan assets:
31 March 2020

31 March 2013

Present value of obiigation at the end of the year 3,607 2 965
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year €14 203
Nat (asset)iabilitiss recognised in the Balance Sheet 2,993 2,672

Fair value of Plan assets :

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

Plan assets at the beginning of the year
Interest [ncome

Expected return on plan assets
Gontribution by employer

Actual benfits paid

Acturlal gainf{loss)

Pian asseis at the end of the year

293
33
(@)

297

614

i0
T
276

293

Exg gnised in the St of Profit and Loss under employee benefits expense:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 220 221
Interest cost 177 181
Expense recognised n the Statemenl of Profit and Loss 397 402

Amount recognised in the olher comprehensive income:

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Remeasurements Cost / (Credit )
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets
Amount recognised in the Other Comprahensive Income

550

559

38

(1)
31




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless othenwiss stated)

Sensitivity analysls :

[Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
Assumptions |Discount rate Future salary increase

Sensitivity lavel 1.00% increase [1.00% decrease 1.00% increase [1.00% decrease
Impact on defined benefit (decrease)fincrease (158)] 172 [134)] 127
[Particulars 31 March 2018 F 31 March 2019
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary i

Sensitivily level
limpact on defined benefit (decrease)/increase

1.00% increase |

1.00% decrease

[1.00% increase [1.00% decreass

{139)]

1

51 24 | {16)

The sensilivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respeclive assumptions ocourring at the end of the year and may nol ba
representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumplion while holding all ather assumptions constant.

ii. Defined pension benefits

The Company has a Post Retirement Benefit plan, which is a defined benefit retirement plan, according to which executives superannuating from the service after ten years of
service are eligible for certain benefits like medical, fuel expenses, telephone reimbursement, club membership etc. for specified number of years, The liability is provided for

on the basis of an independent acturial valuation.

In accordance with Ind AS 18 "Employee Benefits”, an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respeci of post retirement benefits. The discount rate assumed is B.40% pa.
(31 March 2018: 7.50% p.a) which is determined by reference fo market yiekd at the Balance Shee! date on Government bonds. The refirement age has been considered at 60
yaars (31 March 2019: 60 years) and mortality table is as par IALM (2012-14) (31 March 2019: |ALM (2012-14).

Reconciliation of opening and

of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
lessnt value of obligation at the beginning of the year 101 133

Cumrent service cost 25 48

Past service cost = =

Interest cost T 10

Actuarial loss (24) (86)

Bensfits paid (3} (4)
|Present value of obligation at the end of the year 106 101

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefits exp -

Particulais : <1 March 2020 1 March 2042

Current service cost 25 48

Past service cost - -

Interest cost 7 10
|Expense recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss 32 58

A t recognised In the other comprehensive income:
1Partlculars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Remeasuraments Cest / (Credit ) (24) (86)

Actuarial (gain)loss on plan assats - =

Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (24) {86)

Sensitivity analysis ;

[Farticulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Assumplions Di t rate Discount rate
Sensitivity level 1.00% increase 1.00% decraase 1.00% increase | 1.00% decrease
|Impast on defined benefit (24) 32 (22]] 30
Note 24: TRADE PAYABLES

[ 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current

Trade payables

(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 369 178

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small_enterprises 1,11,542 1.13.503

Total 1,11,911 1,13.678

Details of dues to micre small and medium enlerprises as defined under the Micro,

|Trade Payable as staled sbove includes Trade creditors related to materials for R5.72,199 |akhs (31 March 2019 — Rs 64,846 lakhs)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
as at the end of each accounting vear
- Principal amount outstanding (whether due or not) to micro and small enterprises

- Interest due thereon

The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
aopointed dav durina each accounting vear

The amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointad day during the
year

Amount of interest due and payable on delaved payments

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end

The amount of furiher interest remaining due and payable evan in the succeeding

363

41

1,730

67
&7

1

1.1

75

66

26
26

year

Details of Micre and Small Enterprises as define under MSMED ACT, 2006

Ta comply with the requirement of The Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Developmert Act, 2006, the Company requested its suppliers o confirm whether they are
covered as Micro, Small or Medium enterprise as is defined in the said Act Based on the communications received from such suppliers confirming their coverage as such
enterprise, tha Company has recognised them for the necessary treatment as provided under the Act, from the date of receipt of such confirmations.




Smartchem Technologies Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in  Lakhs unless otherwise staled)

Note 25: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
The balance comprises lemporary differences attributable to:

31 March 2020 M March 2019
(a} Defarrad tax assals [37,772) {34,980)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities 50,844 47,971
Met deferred tax liabilities 13,067 12,926
Movements in deferred tax fiabilities:
Movements during the year ended 31 March 2020: o
1 April 2019 Crediti{charge) In |Crediti{charge)| 31 March 2020 |
the statement of in the Other
Profitand Loss | Comprehensiv
e Income
Property, plant and equipment and investment property and Intangible assets 47,971 2,873 - 50,844
Financial assets at fzir value through profit or loss (128) - - {128))
Financial assels at FVOCI {including derivatives) {53} - {187) {240)
MAT credit (3,295) (165} = (3,460)
Provisions (998) {191} - (1,189)
Business loss (30,505) (2,249) - (32,754)
Dthers (65]) 60 = (5}
Net deferred tax liabilities 12,926 328 {187] 13.067
Movements during the year ended 31 March 2018;
1 April 2018 Credit/{charge) in |Credit/(charge)| 31 March 2019
the statement of in the Other
Profit and Loss | Comprehensiv
e Income
Praperty, plant and eguipment and investiment property and Intangible assets 43,486 4,485 - 47,871
Financiai assets at fair value through profit or loss (129) - - (129)
Financial assets at FVOC| (including derivatives) (72} = 19 (53)
MAT eredil {2,839) (436)] = (3.285)
Provisions (893) {103) - (998)
|Business loss (26,936) [3,569) - (30,505}
Others (85) - - (65)]
Net deferred tax liabilities 12,552 as5 19 12,926 |
Note 26: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advances from customers 828 209
Statutory dues payahie 851 1,951
Other payabl - 15
Total 2,175



Smartchem Technologies Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 27: REVENUE FROM OPERTATIONS

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Sale of products

Finished goods 2,35,645 258,020
Traded goods 30,494 57,931
Subsidy on manufactured fertilisers 45,026 43,298
Subsidy on traded fertilisers 3,708 16,444
Other operating revenues 197 245
Total 3,15,070 3,75,938

Note 28: OTHER INCOME

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Dividend income from subsidiary 164 -
Interest income 315 455
Net gain on sale of investments 140 613
Other non-operating income 776 1,366
Total 1,395 2,434
Note 29: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Raw materials as at the beginning of the year 22,497 19,571
Add: Purchases during the year 1,78,045 2,22,867
Less: Raw material as at the end of the year 18,169 22 497
Total 1,82,373 2,198,941
Note 30: PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Purchases of stock-in- trade 23,894 66,538
Total 23,894 66,538
Note 31: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE AND FINISHED GOODS

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance
Finished goods 28,281 15,715
Stock-in-trade 7,697 5,654
Total opening balance 35,978 21,369
Closing balance
Finished goods 20,604 28,281
Stock-in-trade 4,823 7,697
Total closing balance 25,427 35,978
Total 10,551 (14,609)
Note 32: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 15,962 14,133
Contribution to pravident fund & other funds 2,244 1,689
Staff welfare expenses 769 844
Total 18,975 16,666
Note 33: FINANCE COSTS

31 March 2020 31 March 2012
Interest and finance charges # 16,903 17.428
Less: Interest capitalised (1,042) (1,730)
Total 15,861 15,698

# Includes exchange differences to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing cost 40 Lakhs (31 March

2019 Rs 580 Lakhs).




Note 34: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment” 12,818 11,345
Amortisation on intangible assets 5,280 6,054
Total 18,098 17,399

* Depreciation amounting to Rs 1,473 Lakhs transferred from holding company Deepak Fertilisers & Petrochemicals
Corporation Ltd. as common sharing cost. (31 March 2019 Rs 1,015 Lakhs)

Note 35: OTHER EXPENSES (NET)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Consumption of stores and spares 4,835 5,076
Power, fuel and water 5,295 5212
Repairs to :

- Building 489 748
- Plant and machinery 4,012 4,964
- Others 760 483
Rent 1,458 1,919
Insurance 948 486
Rates, taxes and duties 1,432 742
Travelling and conveyance 892 858
Legal and professional fees 2,735 4,828
Payments to auditors (note 34(a) below) 39 35
Directors' fees 17 20
Carriage outward (net) 14,804 20,385
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 50 41
Commission on sales 267 493
Sales and promotion expenses 1,011 1,307
Donations - 250
Ulility sarvices 935 770
Communiation expenses 222 210
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (note 34(b) below) 5 20
Foreign exchange fluctuations loss ( net) 2,505 1,029
Miscellaneous expenses 2,462 4,518
Total 45,233 54,394

Note 35(a): Details of payments to auditors

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

Payment to auditors

As auditor:

Audit fee 27 27
Tax audit fee 3 3
Certification fees/Other Matters 7 2
In other capacities

Taxation matters 1 1
Re-imbursement of expenses 1 2
Total 39 35

Note 35(b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Contributions to Ishanya Foundation - 20
QOthers 5 -
Total 5 20
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 67 51
Amount spent during the year on

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 5 20
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Note 36: Fair value measurements

{i} Financial instruments by category

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
FVPL FVOCI Amortised FVPL FVOCI Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets
Investments
- Equily instruments at fair value 3 - - 3 - -
Trade receivables - - 1,00,668 - - 1,12.891
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3,858 = - 2,876
Other bank balances - - 374 - - 154
Louans - - 463 - - 74
Other financial assets
- Securily deposits - - 349 - - 381
- Derivative financial assets, not designated as 1,675 = g = -
hedaes
- Interest receivable - - 27 - - 332
- Deposit with banks - - 76 - - 76
- Others - - T - - 103
Total financial assets 1,678 - 1,05,822 3 - 1,186,887
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1,24,946 - - 1,62,358
Lease Liabilities - - 4,619 - - -
Trade payables - - 1.11.911 - - 1,13,678
Other financial liabilities
- Derivative financial liabilities, not designated as - o - - - =
hedges
- Capital creditors - - 1,667 - - 2,080
- Securily deposils - - 5118 - - 4,730
- Interest accrued - - 597 - - 1427
- Embeddead derivative 718 - - - - -
- Others - - 1,977 - - 1,532
Total financial liabilities 718 - 250,735 - - 285,785




(ii) Fair value hierarchy
The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at fair value

on a recurring basis {but fair value disclosures are required) :
The different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level-1 that are observable for asset or liability, either direclly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (l.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 - Inpuls for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part
using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from ohservable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are

Hazar asard An availahls roarkad Aats

Financiar assets and liabilities measured at tair 31 March 2u2u 31 March 2019
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Investments at FVPL
Equity shares 3 - - 3 3 - - 3
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts/options - 1,675 - 1,675 - - - -
Total financial assets 3 1,675 - 1,678 3 - = 3
Financial iia
Derivatives
Foreign exchange forward contracts/option contracts - 718 - 718 - - - #
Total financial liabilities - 718 - 718 - - - -

There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

(iil) Valuation process to determine fair value

The foliowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

i} The fair values of investments in debt and government securilies is based on the current bid price of respective investment as at the Balance Sheet date.

ii} The fair values of investments in mutual fund unils is based on the net asset value (NAV) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published
statements as at Balance Sheet dale, NAV represents the price al which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will

redeem such units fram investors.
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Note 37(a): Financial risk management
Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework.

The Company, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and
assurance aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management oversee the
formulation and implementation of the Risk management policies. The risk are identified at business unit level
and mitigation plans are Identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- market risk.

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans

and investments.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum cradit risk exposure.

Trade receivables and other financial assets

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's review
includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry
information and business intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed annually.

Any sales exceeding those limits require appraval from the appropriate authority as per policy.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are a institutional, dealers or end-user customer,
their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of previous financial
difficulties.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables:

The Company based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available
in relation to default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The
Company estimales its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due
for more than 6 month (net of expected credit loss allowance), excluding receivable from group companies is
Rs.503 lakhs (31 March 2019: Rs. 1,346 lakhs)

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,195 1,167
Add: Provided during the year (net of reversa 874 57
Less: Amount written offfreversed 3 29
Balance at the end of the year 1,678 1,195

Expected credit loss on financial assets other than trade receivables:

With regards to all financial assets with coniractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management
believes these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties
from which these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and hence the
risk of default is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted cradit loss has been provided on these
financial assets.
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ii. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the rik thal the Company will encounter difficullies in meaeling the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering

cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to mest its

liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Comapny's reputation.

The Company's treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and lang term liquidity requirements, Short term liguidity situation is reviewed daily

by treasury. Longer term liquidity position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken accerding to the situation,

Exposure to liguidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include

contractual interest payments,

G.‘ AAECh 2070 S AN Payable within 1| Between 1and | More than 5 Total

year 5 years _years
Mon-derivatives financial liabllities
Borrowings 1,24,846 63,883 46,4 14 662 1,24,846
Obligations under finance lease 4,619 926 3,693 - 4,619
Trade payables 62.598 62,598 - - 62,598
Interest accrued 587 597 - - 587
Security deposits 5118 5118 - - 5118
Qther financial liabilities 4,262 4,092 170 - 4,262
Total non-derivative liabilities 2,02,140 1,37.214 50,264 14,662 2,02,140
Derivatives financial liabilities
Foreign exchange forward conlracls - - - - -
Trade payables 48.313 49,313 - - 49,313
Total derivative liabilities 49,313 49,313 - - 49,313




31 March 2019 Carrying Amount Payable within 1| More than 1 More than 5 Total

yoar year years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,61,875 101,711 34,397 25767 1,61.875
Trade payables 72,595 72,595 - - 72,585
Interest accrued 1427 1427 - 1427
Security deposits 4,730 4,730 - 4730
Other financial liabilities 3,892 3,582 - - 3.592
Total non-derivative liabilities 244,219 1,84, 055 34,397 25,767 2,44,219
Derivatives financial liabilities
Foreign exchange contract used for hedging - - - - -
- Borrowings 483 483 - - 483
- Trade payables 41,083 41,083 - - 41,083
Total derivative liabilities 41,566 41,566 - - 41,566

iii. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates that will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
hoidings of financial instrumants. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk expesures within acceptable parameters, while

optimising the return,
Currency risk

The Company is exposed lo currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchases and barrowings are

denominated and the functional currency of the Company. The currencies in which the Company is exposed to risk are USD, AED and EUR.

The Company follows a natural hedge driven currency risk mitigation palicy to the extent possible, Any residual risk s evaluated and appropriate risk mitigating
steps are taken. including but not limited to, enterina into forward contracts.

Exposure to currency risk

{l) The Company's expasure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period is presented in Nete no 46
(ii) The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency deneminated financial instruments and forward contracts.

Impact on profit after tax

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

USD sensitivity

INR/USD -appreciated by 1% (31 March 2019-1%) 502 47
INR/USD -depreciated by 1% (31 March 2019-1%) (502} (417)
EURO sensitivity

INR/EURO -appreciated by 1% (21 March 2019-1%} 3 -
INR/EURO -depreciated by 1% (31 March 2018-1%) (3 -
AED sensitivity

INR/AED-appreciated by NIL (31 March 2019-1%) - 42
INR/AED-depreciated by Nl (31 March 2018-1%) - (42)
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Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markst interest rates. The Company is

exposed lo Interes! rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest 1ate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for
changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees and US dollars with a mix of fixed and floating rates of
interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in base lending rate and LIBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Company
by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Exposure to Iinterest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported te the management of the Company is as follows:

The following table provides a break-up of the Company's fixed and floating rate borrowings:

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2018

Variable rate borrowings 59,783 g8,022
Fixed rate borrowings 65,163 94,336

Total borrowings 1,24,946 1,62.358

(ii) Sensitivity
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate fiabilities assuming the amount of the liability outstanding

at the year-end was outstanding for the whole vear.
If interest rales had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would

decrease [ increase by Rs.299 lacs (for the year ended 31 March 2018, decrease / increase by Rs. 340 lacs). This is mainly atiributable to the Company’s exposure

tn intarast ratas nn ite variahle rata hrrrawinne

Note 38. Capital Management

(a) Risk Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that its can continue to provide returns for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

In order to maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid lo shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets 1o reduce debt.
Consistent with olhers in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gesiing ratlo:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) and divided by Total ‘equity’ {as shown in the Balance Sheet).
The gearing ratios were as follows:

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Net debt 1,20,714 1,598,328
Total equity 263,259 261912
Net debt to equity ratio 0.46 0.61
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Note 39 (a) : Mames Of The Related Parties And Relationships

A.
1

o = w mam

DR W

(=]

=
2

B

(c)

{d}

(e)

Holding Company
Deapak Fertilisers And Petrochemcials Corporation Ltd

. Subsidiary Company

Platinum Blasting Services Pty Lid.[PES] (Subsidiary)
Australian Mining Explosives Pty Ltd (100% Subsidiary of PBS)
Performance Chemiserve Limited (till 2nd May'2019 known as
Perfarmance Chemiserve Private Limited)

Mahadhan Farm Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f 01st Oct'19)

Eellow Subsidiaries

Complete Mining Solution Private Limited (il 18th Nov'18 known as
RungePmcockMinarco India Pyt. Ltd.)

Yerrowda Investments Ltd.

Deepak Mining Services Pvi.Ltd,

Deepak Nitrochem Pty.Ltd.

SCM Fertichem Ltd.

Ishanya Brand Services Limited (w.e.f 16th Mar'20, previously associate)

Key Management Personnel

Executive directors
Mr. Yesnil mehta

Non-executive directors

Mr Sailash Chimanlal Mehta

Ms Parul Sailesh Mehta

Mr Tapan Kumar Chatterjae

Mr Madhumilan Parshuram Shinde

Non-executive Independent directors
Mr Partha Sarathi Bhattacharya
Mr Sewak Ram Wadhwa

Mr Urmilkurnar Purushottamdas Jhaveri
Mr Ashok Kumar Purwaha

Company Secretary
Mr. Pankaj Gupta

Chief Finance Officer
Mr Amitabh Bhargava

(¢} =l L= B R A

m

11

Im

(2}

-

W R|T

Entities Over Which Key Managerial Personnel Are Able To
Exercise Significant Influence:

Rabust Marketing Services Private Limited
Nava Synthetic Limited

Blue Shell Investiments Pvt.Ltd.

The Lakaki Works Pyl Lid.

Superpose Credits And Capital Pvt.Ltd.

Storewel| Credils And Capital Pvt.Lid.
High Tide Investments Pvi.Ltd.
Deepak Asset Reconstruction Pvt.Ltd.

Mahadhan Investment and Finance Pvl.Ltd

Ishanya Foundation
Daepak Foundation

Relatives Of Key Management Personnel
Ms. Rajvee Mehia

E ver whi f management

Despak Niirite Lid.
Deepak Phenolics Ltd.
Sofotel Infra Private Ltd

Associates Of Holding Company

Ishanya Reailty Corporation Ltd.

Mumbai Modern Terminal P. Ltd

Desal Frults Ventura Private Limited (Not a associate company
from 18th July'2019)
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Hate 18 (b} Related Party transactions:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Enterprises Over Enterprises Over
i ;"":“ "“""":"‘ Which Ralatives of Koy ey ovar WG |hich Ralactvas of
85 | v of Tronsactions Hedding i sy Management Hodding e s ey Managemert
e are able to Tatal Personnel ane able Total
No. Cempany Personnel Ara Able [Company i Parsonnel Are Al
Parsonnal  foxoreiso signiieant | AR s b o |l smercisn o uu
b Significant influence shgnificant Inthasncs | e Wicant Infussncal
1 [Sak of goods
Deapak Fortibsars and Petrochacnicas Comporation Limted 4564 = . = * 14.564 20805 - - - * 20,603
Depah Hitrite Livnited 5 = % i, 152 152 f - 3 2 @ P
[Maradhan Famm Techno'agies Limfed™ - 1053 - - - 1,053 - - - 1,303 = 1303
2 dariig of ' o
BCM Ferticham Limfod i il 2 . . kil - - - - . -
2 |Purchaze of geods and serviess
[nespak Farfilisars an Pelroche micsls Comporation Limited (52, 140, . . - - {56,140 3,785 - : : . (43755
Manadiian Fanm Techaologizs Limited® - 2275 - - - i2,275)] - - . {1002} = irso)|
4 ' P
Despak Feriiasrs and Petrochemmcals Corpporalion Limted 113,738} . - + - 413,730 (12523 - - - - 1282y
Fiainum Basting Serices Py Lid - |94 - - - (5 - 2 3 = i (2
M F Sninds - - lul - - Ll - - () - - 13
4 |interest on loan tlaken
Dieepak Fetidisers ang Petrochemicals Comporaton Limied (94} - . - - 98] i3, - . - - .03
B [Interest on loan give.
Farm Lim ged™ - o - - - n - - - . . =
T |Dividend Recoived
Flatinum Elasting Services Pry Lid 3 164 = ” P 164 < < " 5 z
@ |Remunerstion [mcluding pe ruesites]™
Mr Yozt Marta - - (102 . Z (1) 5 G (87 3 5 (51
M Debastich Banees - - = : = = = . (& = s (3
it Mandar Valaniar - - . . . . . s ) - s b
M1 Panis) Gupta - - (44] - - (4] - . 40| - - {0)]
2 |Loanand Acvances Taksn
Ceopak Fertiicers and Petrochsmical Conporation Limited 815 ¥ - - - CIED 25.000 - - - s 25,000
10 |Lean and Advancos Ghven
anachian Fanm technologies Limited® - ro0| = E P (7om| a i . * - =
11 |Loan end Advances Repale
Duograk Furtiisers anc Pokochemicals Corpporation Limited 16,0009, - - - + 16,000} 119.000)) : - = & [15.000)
12 |Loan and Advances Oivon Recoived
Mnkadhan Farm lachreiogies Limilad® i 10 5 310 = 2 3 =
13 |Equity Share Puschass
15 Mahta = 3 {ram3) Z . {1382 - - - e =
[Por Mahta - - 1)) . S i - % 5 . = -
44 |Azzat Purchase
Smarkchem Technalogies Lindies (0] - - {6 - - - = % 5
15 [Ameunt cutstanding
Trada payatios/|Recarvanios)
Dioepak Ferfimers anc Pobochemicals Comporaton Limited 15,775 5 = z 3 115, 775) {79,045 = - . = (150451
Mahadhan Farm Techaciogice Lmitad® - (254, . - - (254} - - - ar - ar
Dicepak Mirfie Lid. £ e T . % : S g Z & &
Romunarations payatls
M Yosl Mhta = 2 = = < : 2 = ; = = 2
Mr Fanka; Gupta = - x : 3 : : s i ] > L
| Trace recelvables.
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Note 31 (b] Reisted Party trangactions:

7 Wareli 1020 37 March 2010
Enterprimes Dver Enterpiises Ovar
Ermioas ovar WHIEN g1l Ralathons of Key raas Svar WIS |Wihicn Ralaiivas of
3 | atuire of Transactions R vols Pers A Tota | Hoking N [
e, Company 4 > Porsanne! Are Able Compary | nt ithosciinh Personnel Are Able
(To Exercisn Personned To Exarcize
il Sign fficant Influenco vignicand Influence oy n¥icant Infusnce
Deepak Mitrde Lid - - - - - E=T0) 3500 - =3
intzrest Payable
Despa Fertiisers eng Pelroehemicals Comperatian Limses {38 - - 4 i . e (312 = 5
Interesl Recaivable
Mahathan £ 1echnologies Lim o 3 ] X 2 & 2 s = 2 z = 2 =
Loan recervabile
|Mahadhan Farm lechneicgics Limied® - 300 = - - - 360 - - ~ = -
Loan repayatile

Deepak Fertiisen s9¢ smited 615 - -

Waile  Figuees m brackel s ol

ANl onein ¥ BIm'E dengih basam
* Wanadhan Faem Techralogles Privaie Limited (wa { 0151 Oc't9 subsiciaey)
*Hemunanaton oasn't nchudn sitting fees pad ta nen-nxecutive Graciors ol 17 Lashs (31 March 20499 ; 20 Lekhs|
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Note 40: Contingent liabilities and Commitments

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A. Contingent liabilities
Claims by third parties not acknowledged as debt 5,669 3,480
Income Tax demands 21 21
Sales Tax/VAT Demands 1,928 1,850
Local Body Tax 633 598

8,251 5,949

B. Commitments
Related to Projects 10,811 11,435
Other capital commitment 2,038 3.914
Total 12,849 15,349

Note 41

The Department of Fertilisers (DoF}), Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilisers, had withheld subsidy, due to the Company in accordance with
applicable Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) scheme of GOI, alleging undue gain arising to the Company on account of supply of cheap domestic gas
since challengad by the Company before the Honourable High Court of Bombay. Based on the directive of the Honourable Court, DoF agreed to
release subsidy withheld except & sum of Rs. 310 Crores pending final decision, which has been released during the month of January 2018
against a Bank Guarantee of equal amount.

Note 42

GAIL has claimed a sum of Rs. 357 crores in respect of supply of domestic natural gas for the period July 2006 to May 2014 (inclusive of interest
till 2016), alleging usage for manufacture of products other than Urea. As per two contracts entered into 2006 and 2010 between the Company
and GAIL, the purchase of gas was clearly intended, supplied and utilised for industrial applications. It has been in the full knowledge of the
Department of Fertilisers, Government of India that the Company; as per the industrial license, since its inception was never engaged in the
manufacture of Urea and the dispute was referred to Arbitration. J

Claims by GAIL was divided into two parts by Company while challenging arbitration. Claim under Gas Sales and Transportation Agreement of
2006 is non-arbitrable. Similarly, the claim for the period from 2011 to 2013; are barred by limitation. Accepting Company's stand, the Arbitration
Tribunal has rejected the claims of GAIL vide orders dated 05.08.2017 and 13.12.2017. Thereafter GAIL filed Arb Appeal (COMM) NO. 3/2018
challenging the order dated 05.09.2017 and OMP (COMM}) No. 31/2018 before Hon'ble Delhi High Court, which dismissed both the appeals vide
its order dated 20.12.2018 and upheld the order of Arbitrator.

Consequently, GAIL has preferred a Special Leave petition before the Hon'ble Supreme Court against dismissal of Arb Appeal (COMM) 3/2018
and also preferred an appeal before Divisional bench of Hon'ble Delhi High Court against dismissal of OMP (COMM) No 31/2018. Both lhe

petitions are pending adjudication as at the reporling date,

Note 43
A Search and Seizure Operation was conducted by the Income Tax Department during the period from 15 November 2018 to 21 November 2018

under section 132 and 133A of the Income-tax Act, 1961. During the current year, the Company received notice under Section 153A of the Income
tax Act, 1961 and had filed revised Income tax returns for Assessment Years 2013-2014 to 2018-2019 in response fo the notice. The Company
has also not till date received any demand notice in relation to the Search and Selzure. Management is of the view, that the outcome of the search
will not have any significant impact on the provision carried in the books for the respective years and hance no additional provision is required to
be recognised as at 31 March 2020.

Note 44: Leases
The Company has taken premises on operating lease for a pericd of one to five years. The future lease payment of such operating lease is as

follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Minimun Lease rental payable

Not later than 1 year - 1,512
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 1,052
Total - 2,564

Note 45: DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 186(4) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Loans and advances lo related parties includes loan given to a subsidiary. The particulars of which are disclosed below as required.

granted to the
subsidiary for
repayment of
shareholder's loan.
The loan is repayble
on demand

MName of the party Rate of Purpose, Due date 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
interest and amount
pavable
Mahadhan Farm technologies Limited 9.37%|The loan has been 390 -
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Note 46: Foreign currency balances outstanding

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Amount in Equivalent Amount in Equivalent
Foreign Currency | Amountin INR | Foreign Currency | Amount in INR
Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs

Hedged Position*
Creditors (in USD) 652 49,313 584 41,083
Buyers Credit (in USD) 7 483
Total 652 49,313 601 41,566
Un-hedged Position
Creditors (in USD) 14 1,060 16 1,131
Creditors (in EURO) 1 83 - -
Interest accrued (in EURQ) 2 171 - -
Creditors (in AED) - - 226 4,246
Exports (in USD) 3 210 14 971
Total 20 1,524 256 6,348

*The above transactions are hedged by

following derivative contracts

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Particulars Amount in Equivalent Amount in Equivalent
Foreign Currency | Amount in INR | Foreign Currency | Amount in INR
Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
Forward Contracts - USD 58 4,010
Options Contracts - USD 652 49,313 543 37,556
Total 652 49,313 601 41,566

The Company has chosen to not designate the foreign exchange forward contracts and options contracts as hedges

under IND AS 109

Unhedged Foreign Currency exposure s as under

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Particulars Amount in Equivalent Amount in Equivalent
Foreign Currency | Amount in iNR | Foreign Currency | Amount in INR
Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
Payables - USD 14 1,060 16 1,131
Payables - EURO 3 254 - -
Payables - AED - - 226 4,246
Receivables - USD 3 210 14 971
Total 20 1,524 256 6,348
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Note 48: Seg t Reporting

Sr
No PARTICULARS

CHEMICALS | FERTILISERS | OTHERS | COMMON | TOTAL

1|Revenue
a) External Sales

1) Manufactured 1,22,315 1,58,553 - - 2,580,868
Previous Year 1.48,714 1,52,849 - - 3,01,563
i) Traded - 34,202 B - 34,202
Previous Year - 74,375 - - 74,375
b) Other operating incoma - - 1,395 - 1,325
Previous Year - - 2434 - 2,434
c) Unallocated Corporate other income - - - ed ]
Frevious Year - - - = =
Total Revenue 1.22,315 1,92,755 1,395 - 3,16,465
Previous Year 1,48,714 227,224 2,434 - 3,718,372
2|Segment Result 31,277 3,326 - - 34,613
Frevious Year 37,498 (3.738) - - 33,760

3|Unallocated Corporate expenses - - - 33,133 33,133
Previous Year - - . 31,415 31,415
4|Net profit - - - - 1,480
Previous Year - 3 = = 2,345
5|Other Information
a) Segment Assets 1,17,156 2,02,452 - 2,14,020 | 5,33,628
Pravious Year ag,112 2,727,536 - 249,084 | 566732
u} Szgment Liabilities 54,694 1,786,578 - 37,097 | 2,70,36%
Previous Year 68,218 201111 - 35490 | 304,820
¢) Capital Expenditure incurred during the year 2474 3,266 - & 5740
Previous Year 6,162 10,266 - - 16,448
d) Depreciation/ Amortisati 5221 5,169 . 7,708 18,098
Pravious Year 4,995 4,228 - 8,176 17,399
Segment information
1. Primary segment repoarting (by business segments)
Compasition of business segment
Segment Products covered

&) Chemicals
b} Bulk Fertilisers

Ammonia, TAN
NP, MOP, DAF, Ammoenium Sulphate, Mixtures, SSP, Sulphur,
Micronutrients, SSF, Bio Fertilisers, Fruits, Vegetables, Peslicides

2 Secondary Segment Information: There are no reportable geographical segments since the Company caters mainly to needs of

Indian Markets.

Note 49 Previous year's figure have been re-grouped wherever nacessary to confirm to current year's grouping.

Note 50 Previous year figures are given in bracketfitallics.

Note no 3 to 50 form an integral part of the financial statements
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